
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
REVISED AGENDA

 
Date: Tuesday, November 19, 2024
Time: 7:00 pm
Location: Catholic Education Centre - Board Room

802 Drury Lane
Burlington, Ontario

Pages

1. Call to Order

1.1 Land Acknowledgement, Opening Prayer, Our Father, National Anthem (I.
Yeboah)

1.2 Motions Arising From In-Camera

2. Approval of the Agenda

3. Declarations of Conflict of Interest

4. Elections of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board 2024-2025

4.1 Election of Chair of the Board (J. Klein)

4.2 Election of Vice-Chair of the Board (J. Klein)

5. Presentations

5.1 Senior Staff Update - Early Literacy Screening Program (J. Crowell) 1 - 8

6. Delegations

7. Consent Agenda Items

7.1 Action Items

7.1.1 [Approval of Minutes] Minutes of November 5, 2024 Regular Board
Meeting

9 - 12

7.1.2 [Action] Policy Action Reports

7.1.2.1 [Action] Policy I-46 Trustee Communications and
Correspondence to the Board  (J. O'Hearn-Czarnota)

13 - 18

7.1.2.2 [Action] Policy II-07 The School Day (Daily Sessions) -
Elementary and Secondary (J. O'Hearn-Czarnota)

19 - 23

7.1.2.3 [Action] Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises (J.
O'Hearn-Czarnota)

24 - 27



7.1.2.4 [Action] Policy II-39 Progressive Discipline and Safety in
Schools (J. O'Hearn-Czarnota)

28 - 43

7.2 Noted Items

7.2.1 [Business Arising from Previous Meetings] Business Arising from
Previous Meetings

44 - 44

7.2.2 [Miscellaneous] Minutes of the October 8, 2024 Policy Committee
Meeting

45 - 50

7.2.3 [Correspondence] Ministry Memorandum - Managing School Board
Expenses and Prioritizing Student Safety

51 - 51

7.2.4 [Correspondence] International Student Program Travel - A. Kolch 52 - 53

7.2.5 [Correspondence] International Student Program Travel - I. McCombe 54 - 54

8. Approval of Minutes

9. Business Arising from Previous Meetings

10. Action Items

10.1 Request for Financial and Management Audit by the Ministry of Education (C.
Saunders)

55 - 55

11. Staff Reports

12. Information Reports

12.1 Director's Report (J. Klein) 56 - 58

12.2 Construction Report (R. Merrick) 59 - 60

12.3 2024 International Student Program (ISP) Recruitment Trips Overseas Report
(A. Cordeiro)

61 - 64

13. Miscellaneous Information

13.1 Student Trustees Update (L. McGuire, S. Philbert, I. Yeboah) 65 - 66

13.2 OCSTA Update (J. O'Hearn-Czarnota)

14. Correspondence

15. Open Question Period

16. In Camera

17. Resolution re Absentees

18. Adjournment and Closing Prayer (B. Agnew)

2



1



Background
• In 2022, OHRC released their Right to Read Report recommending 

changes in Early Literacy Instruction

• HCDSB responded quickly, beginning to purchase resources based 
on the Science of Reading and training teachers on new Literacy 
Instruction Practices

• Early Literacy Itinerants were hired (1 in 2021-22; 3 more in 2022-
23) to provide training and support to staff around Science of 
Reading and effective literacy instruction

• In June 2023, Ministry of Education released new Gr. 1 – 8 Literacy 
Curriculum for implementation in September 2023

• September 2025 – we are expecting a new Kindergarten 
Curriculum which will have expectations which we expect will 
involve direct literacy instruction 

2



Background
• Ministry of Education provided funding to each Board to 

purchase an Early Literacy Screening Tool, to identify students 
who are not at benchmark, in both English and French

• As part of the recent Central Terms of the OECTA Elementary 
Agreement, each Board received enveloped funding to hire 
Early Literacy Screening Teachers

• The role of these teachers is to:
• Support literacy screening for all Year 2 Kindergarten, Gr. 1, and Gr. 2 

students in English, and Gr. 2 French Immersion students

• Provide intervention to students who require support to improve 
their literacy 

3



Screening
• Screening has been going on across all elementary HCDSB 

schools and will be wrapping up this week

• If a student is not successful in screening, this provides 
information for teachers to then do further diagnostic 
testing to identify gaps in student abilities and skills

• Schools will work to gather further data and identify which 
students would benefit from literacy intervention (e.g., 
small-group instruction with Itinerant teachers)

• Students who are unsuccessful in the first round of 
screening will be screened again to track improvement 

4



Screener Information
• Acadience Reading Français (French)
• What does the screener look for?

▪ In grade 2 French Immersion, the screener measures how 
students are able to decode nonsense words (for example, 
"mep") and how they perform in oral reading fluency as they 
read a passage.

• How is the test administered?
▪ In French Immersion the screener is administered by the 

classroom teacher.

• What information does the screener give the teacher?
▪ In French Immersion the screener provides data to the teacher 

based on the measures administered. The data is interpreted to 
show teachers where further work is needed, for example in 
phonics or decoding.

5



Screener Information
• AimsWeb Plus (English)

• What are the measures for each grade?
• Year 2 Kindergarten: Letter Naming Fluency, Letter Sound Word Fluency, and 

Phonemic Segmentation

• Grade 1: Phonemic Segmentation, Nonsense Word Fluency, Oral Reading Fluency

• Grade 2: Oral Reading Fluency, Comprehension, Vocabulary

• How is the test administered?
• For Year 2 Kindergarten and Grade 1 all measures are administered one on one by 

the classroom teacher.

• For Grade 2, the Oral Reading Fluency is administered one on one by the classroom 
teacher. Comprehension and Vocabulary are independently completed through 
technology (tablet or computer)

• What information does the screener give the teacher?
▪ The screener provides data based on the measures administered. The data is shows 

teachers where further diagnostic assessment and instruction is needed, for 
example in phonics or fluency.

6



What’s next?
• Schools will do further diagnostic testing to determine what students 

would benefit from intervention

• Teachers will use Tier 1 strategies to ensure all students are 
progressing in their literacy skills

• Results are shared with parents through Report Cards and Parent-
Teacher interviews

• Students who were unsuccessful in the first screening will be 
screened again at a later point in the year

7



8



 

9



 

 10



 

 

 

11



 

 12



 

13



 

 

14



 

 

15

https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/HCDSB-Procedural-By-Law-November-2024-1.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/HCDSB-Procedural-By-Law-November-2024-1.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/V-18-Community-Engagement-and-Public-Consultation-Policy.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/V-09-Public-Concerns-Complaints-Process.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Guidelines-for-Trustee-Communications.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-06-Delegation-to-the-Board.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-36-Trustee-Code-of-Conduct.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-07-Protection-of-Privacy.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02#BK206
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-06%20Delegation%20to%20the%20Board.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-170#section-2


 

• 

• 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

16



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

17



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

18

https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/2016-07-Delegation-to-Board-General.pdf


 

19



 

 

20



 

• 

• 

 

21

https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-39-Inclement-Weather-Safety.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-47-Inclement-Weather-Transportation-Cancellations-and-Emergency-School-Closures.pdf
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi5iuzB7vzdAhVEWq0KHXXFBu0QFjAAegQIAhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/900298


 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

22



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

23



 

  

24



 

 

25



 

mission                        

● 

● 

● 

26

https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi5iuzB7vzdAhVEWq0KHXXFBu0QFjAAegQIAhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj8sLSo7_zdAhUEXa0KHbilAgoQFjAAegQIAxAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F900298&usg=AOvVaw2ZpC1zmHD9Tq1yr7MzX5Sq
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/000435
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiYyrmf7_zdAhVQMqwKHe6GAaQQFjAAegQICBAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2FS00012&usg=AOvVaw2Se8Op_50fLEs4MW7qRyAn


 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

• 

• 

 

27



 

 

28



 

 

29



 

30

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-44%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20in%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-11%20International%20Student%20Admission%20Requirements%20(Fee%20Paying%20Students).pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-14%20Smoking%20-%20Vaping%20Ban.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-30%20Video%20Surveillance.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-83%20Video%20Surveillance%20Procedure.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-43%20Use%20of%20Technology%20and%20Digital%20Citizenship.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-62%20Use%20of%20Technology%20and%20Digital%20Citizenship.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-63%20Social%20Media.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-03%20Principal%20Designate%20in%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-10%20Releasing%20Students%20from%20School.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-12%20Management%20of%20Aggressive%20Student%20Behaviours%20Within%20Our%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-26%20Managing%20Student%20Risk%20in%20Interschool%20Sports.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-28%20Alcohol,%20Tobacco,%20Vaping,%20and%20Drug%20Education%20and%20Abuse%20in%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-40%20Bullying%20Prevention%20and%20Intervention.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/II-41-School-Uniform-Dress-Code-School-Dress-Code-2021.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-45%20Equity%20and%20Inclusive%20Education.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-54%20Equity%20and%20Inclusive%20Education.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-60%20Student%20Groups%20in%20Catholic%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-48%20Violent%20Threat%20Risk%20Assessment.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-15%20Workplace%20Violence.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-16%20Workplace%20Discrimination%20and%20Harassment.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/II-20-Child-Abuse-and-Protection-of-Students.pdf


 

 

 

31

https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/Const/page-12.html
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=4&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjlt8qXjuneAhWNnoMKHZ9iBu4QFjADegQIBhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/safeschools/code.html
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-119
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-128
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-128
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-141
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-141
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-142
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-144
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/extra/eng/ppm/145.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r07472
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90s22
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19


 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

32



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

o 

o 

o 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

o 

• 

33



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

34



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

39



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

40



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



 

42



 

43



 

44



 

POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

 

  
 
 

 

45



 

 

46



 

47



 

 

 

 

 

48



 

49



 

50



 Memorandum To: Chairs of District School Boards 
Directors of Education 
Secretary/Treasurer of School Authorities 
  

From: The Honourable Jill Dunlop  
Minister of Education  
  

Date:  November 14, 2024 

Subject Managing School Board Expenses and Prioritizing Student Safety 

   

 
Our government is making historic investments in public education, and parents expect school 
boards to be responsible stewards of those dollars to prioritize student achievement.  
  
In light of recent events, I want to be absolutely clear: our investments are a commitment to 
strengthening our public education system and improving the student experience. To maintain 
public confidence in the education system, it is imperative that taxpayer dollars go towards 
supporting student achievement and better equipping teachers in the classroom, rather than 
being squandered on inappropriate expenditures. 
  
As a result, we will be reviewing discretionary expenses and including them in our bi-annual 
disclosures of board financials enabled through Bill 98 to create more accountability and 
transparency. 
  
Hard working taxpayers and parents deserve to know that the money the province is investing 
toward student education is going into the classroom, and school boards have a responsibility to 
act as responsible stewards of that funding. Trustees, directors of education and executive 
leaders play a critical role in managing school board expenses effectively by setting and 
adhering to robust policy frameworks and administrative procedures that prioritize value for 
money. By focusing on these principles, we can ensure that every dollar spent contributes to the 
success and well-being of our students and the integrity of our education system. 
  
It is my expectation that trustees and school board executives lead by example, exercise sound 
judgement and champion fiscal responsibility. Such leadership is crucial in fostering a culture of 
accountability, ensuring that our resources are managed wisely so we can graduate the best 
and brightest students in the country. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
The Honourable Jill Dunlop  
Minister of Education  
  
c:   Denise A. Cole, Deputy Minister of Education  

Didem Proulx, Assistant Deputy Minister, Capital and Business Support Division  
Andrew Davis, Assistant Deputy Minister, Education Labour and Finance Division  
Giselle Basanta, Assistant Deputy Minister, Education Equity and Governance Secretariat  
Scott Allinson, Chief of Staff, Minister’s Office 
President, Association des conseils scolaires des écoles publiques de l’Ontario (ACÉPO)  
Executive Director, Association des conseils scolaires des écoles publiques de l’Ontario (ACÉPO)  
President, Association franco-ontarienne des conseils scolaires catholiques (AFOCSC)  
Executive Director, Association franco-ontarienne des conseils scolaires catholiques (AFOCSC)  
President, Ontario Catholic School Trustees’ Association (OCSTA)  
Executive Director, Ontario Catholic School Trustees Association (OCSTA)  
President, Ontario Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA)  
Executive Director, Ontario Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA)  
Executive Director, Council of Ontario Directors of Education (CODE)  
President, Association des enseignantes et des enseignants franco-ontariens (AEFO)  
Executive Director and Secretary-Treasurer, Association des enseignantes et des enseignants franco-
ontariens (AEFO)  
President, Ontario English Catholic Teachers’ Association (OECTA)  
General Secretary, Ontario English Catholic Teachers’ Association (OECTA)  
President, Elementary Teachers’ Federation of Ontario (ETFO)  
General Secretary, Elementary Teachers’ Federation of Ontario (ETFO)  
President, Ontario Secondary School Teachers’ Federation (OSSTF)  
General Secretary, Ontario Secondary School Teachers’ Federation (OSSTF)  
Chair, Ontario Council of Education Workers (OCEW)  
Chair, Education Workers’ Alliance of Ontario (EWAO)  
President of OSBCU, Canadian Union of Public Employees – Ontario (CUPE-ON)   
Co-ordinator, Canadian Union of Public Employees – Ontario (CUPE-ON)  
Executive Director, Association des directions et directions adjointes des écoles franco-ontariennes (ADFO)  
Executive Director, Catholic Principals’ Council of Ontario (CPCO)  
Executive Director, Ontario Principals’ Council (OPC) 

51



Sent:  Friday, November 15, 2024 3:20 PM 
To:   Director's Office <director@hcdsb.org>; Duarte, Marvin <DuarteM@hcdsb.org> 
Cc:   Karabela, Helena <KarabelaH@hcdsb.org>; Kennedy, Robert <KennedyR@hcdsb.org>;  

Murphy, Emma <MurphyE@hcdsb.org>; Saunders, Chris <SaundersC@hcdsb.org>;  
Agnew, Brenda <AgnewB@hcdsb.org>; Kelly, Kirsten <KellyK@hcdsb.org>;  
Powell, Trish <PowellT@hcdsb.org>; O'Hearn-Czarnota, Janet  
<O'Hearn-CzarnotaJ@hcdsb.org> 

Subject: [<EXTERNAL>] International Student Program Travel 
 

 
Director Klein and Chair Duarte, 
 
Having read the statement you posted to the board website yesterday, I have some outstanding 
questions that I believe still have not been satisfactorily addressed. 
 
Let me start by saying, I have no objection to HCDSB running an international student program. 
I agree that a diverse learning environment benefits all students and understand international 
student enrollment can represent an additional revenue stream. My concern is not with the 
program itself, but rather with the lack of due diligence and tracking done to ensure the 
expenses related to travel for conferences is actually meaningfully translating into new 
enrollment – a fact that has not yet been substantiated. 
 
In both the initial response Chair Duarte provided to me back in May, and in yesterday’s public 
statement, there are some general assertions made that beg additional questions: 
 
“…it is challenging to directly link specific enrolments to individual trips…” 
This is the heart of the matter. There are many ways there could be better accountability and 
tracking of outcomes, and it seems the board has simply chosen not to undertake those 
activities. If that is the case, I would urge you to reconsider future trips until such a time that the 
board is prepared to better monitor impact and outcome of those investments. 

• Standard practice for any professional who attends conferences to generate leads is, 
minimally, some basic tracking of these opportunities. It is not unreasonable to expect 
that if these trips are approved with the aim of prospecting future students that we would 
be collecting contact information for these potential leads, following up with them, and 
tracking whether or not they ultimately choose to enroll with our board. If this is not 
happening, what exactly is happening on these trips, and after them? 

• Further, it would seem straight forward to add to our international student onboarding, a 
question as to how they chose our board that would allow for data collection of this sort 
over time. Given that we have been attending these conferences for many years, I would 
be surprised if we do not have some level of data here. 

• In the absence of any of the above, how do we measure whether or not these trips are 
successful? Has anyone ever actually asked? 

 
“The revenue generated through the International Student Program exceeds the costs 
associated with staffing, travel, conferences, and other related expenses.” 

• Can the board in any way demonstrate that international student enrollment would be 
negatively impacted if we didn’t attend these conferences? 

• Do other area boards have a comparable proportion of international students? Do they 
attend conferences of this nature? 

• How many of our international students chose to come as a result of recruitment efforts 
vs. life circumstances that landed them in our area? 

52



-2- 
 

Ultimately, if there is a clear case that the conferences directly yield increased income that 
offsets their expense, I understand the decision. I have not yet, however, seen anything to 
confirm this is the case. My concern, therefore, is in trying to understand the rationale for why 
trustees - including you, Mr. Chair - voted in favour of three trips, particularly when the original 
motion was only for one. Even if the board is able to substantiate the benefit of previous years’ 
trips, there is no precedent for three trips in a single year. Without the benefit of the meeting 
recording or transcript (as promised on the website to this day), I have no insight into whatever 
discussion may have occurred and none has been provided in response to my inquiries. 
 
Lastly – I would like to remind the board of a delegation that has stayed with me since I heard it 
back in March 2021. An international student delegated at the March 2, 2021 board meeting, on 
behalf of herself and fellow international students, bravely sharing their experiences with racism 
and discrimination in our schools. I would urge the current board to re-visit this delegation, and 
ensure sufficient measures have been, and continue to be, taken to ensure that our international 
students have a positive experience. We cannot be so focused on the revenue they represent 
that we lose sight of the wellbeing of the students themselves. 
 
I hope answers to much of the above are included in Tuesday’s presentation. Please confirm 
that the meeting will be livestreamed and recorded, and include this in the correspondence 
package. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Allison Kolch 
HCDSB parent, Oakville 
 

53



Director Klein and Chair Duarte,

I am writing to express my frustration with the statement jointly issued to address the recent
CBC News story concerning Board spending on recruitment trips (You can read the article
here:
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/hamilton/halton-catholic-school-board-spending-1.7382240
)

The statement emphasises the benefits of the International Student Program, yet this was
not the focus of either parents’ concerns or the CBC article. Not once in the past several
years, despite attending such conferences for nearly a decade, have staff presented an
actual return on investment for the money spent. It's not enough to say it's “challenging” to
put together such an analysis. After years of the international student program and trips to all
over the world, it should be well known how successful they are at recruiting actual students.
Can you imagine such a request in the private sector without any clear business case? And
yet, in the midst of budget challenges, trustees are willing to approve multiple trips on
nothing more than a gut feeling that it works. It seems a reminder of correlation and
causation is necessary.

I could just as easily say that students are attracted to HCDSB due to its STEAM
programming and $40K would be better spent there each year. Perhaps it’s the sports and
extracurriculars? Maybe it's the state of the school facilities? Maybe students choose
HCDSB simply because they have family in the area (it should be noted the ratio of
international students to total enrollment is nearly identical with our coterminous board). With
the information available there is no way to know why and we cannot simply assume that
spending money on recruitment trips is responsible for any portion of the students who
choose to attend HCDSB.

That brings me to my final point: the approval of the spending in the first place. During the
initial presentation, I heard repeated requests for an analysis of the ROI. In May, when the
final approval was sought the request was reduced from three trips to one (perhaps due to
budget concerns) and yet somehow according to the meeting minutes trustees decided to
approve three trips anyway. The agenda shows no such analysis of the efficacy of the trips
and still the board amended to add and approve the trips. And further, the recording of the
meeting is still missing months after it was supposed to be available leaving questions about
how exactly this came to pass. During a time when fiscal responsibility has been
emphasised as a priority and several trustees continually proclaim responsible stewardship, I
unfortunately can't see this as either.

Respectfully,

Ian McCombe

54



 

55



 

56



 

 

57



 

 

  

58



• 

• 

• 

59



• 

  

  

60



 

 

                        

61



 

62



 

International Travel Expenses 

International Students 

Travel Description Conference 
Dates 

Budget (per April 
reports) 

Expenses 
(CAD) 

CAPS-I Registration Fee Feb 26-29, 2024 6,200 6,200  

Brazil Brazilian Visitor's VISA  250 -  

 Air Canada (Economy)  1,600 3,138 * 
 Hotel (at location of event)  1,500 2,052 * 

 Airport/Hotel Transportation  400 135  

 Incidentals / Meals  300 161  

Total Trip   10,250 11,687  

ICEF Registration Fee Sep 14-16, 2024 6,200 6,356  

Rome Air Canada (Economy)  1,500 1,881 * 
 Hotel (at location of event)  1,800 2,841 ** 
  Airport/Hotel T ransportation  500 454  

 Incidentals / Meals  100 195  

Total Trip  10,100 11,728  

ICEF Registration Fee Nov 2-5, 2024 6,200 6,356   

Berlin Air Canada (Economy)  1,400 2,574 * * 
 Hotel (at location of event)  1,000 1,977 *  

 Airport/Hotel Transportation  500 533   

 Incidentals / Meals  100 156   

Total Trip  9,200 11,597   

* Price increase due to timing of booking 
** Additional stay for a special invitation by Former Consulate/ Current Director of Education in Rome to 
tour elementary and secondary schools for international students and exchange programs. 

63



 

64



 

 

65



 

 

66


	Agenda
	5.1. 5.1 Senior Staff Update - Early LIteracy Screening - Nov. 19th 2024.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.1. 2024_11_05_MINUTES - Regular Board Meeting.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.1. 7.1.2.1 Policy I-46 Trustee Communications and Correspondence to the Board - Action Report.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.1. I-46 Correspondence to the Board.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.2. 7.1.2.2 Policy II-07 The School Day (Daily Sessions) - Elementary and Secondary - Action Report.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.2. II-07 The School Day (Daily Sessions) - Elementary and Secondary.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.3. 7.1.2.3 Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises - Action Report.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.3. II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.4. 7.1.2.4 Policy II-39 Progressive Discipline and Safety in Schools - Action Report.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.1.2.4. II-39 Progressive Discipline and Safety in Schools.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.2.1. Business Arising Chart.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.2.2. POLICY_2024_10_08_MINUTES_.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.2.3. 7.2.3 [Correspondence] Ministry Memo - Managing School Board Expenses and Prioritizing Student Safety.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.2.4. Correspondence - A. Kolch.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	7.2.5. Correspondence - I. McCombe.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	10.1. 10.1 Request for Financial and Management Audit by the Ministry of Education.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	12.1. 12.1 Director's Report November 19 2024.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	12.2. Construction Report - November 2024.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	12.3. 12.3 2024 Internatonal Student Program (ISP) Recruitment Trips Overseas Report.pdf
	Return to Agenda

	13.1. 13.1 Student Trustee Update - Nov. 19 2024.pdf
	Return to Agenda


